
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Rochdale Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson 
e-mail:              peter.thompson@rochdale.gv.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Tuesday, 3rd January 2017

Dear Councillor

Rochdale Township Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of Rochdale Township Committee to be 
held at the Training and Conference Suite on the first floor of the Council 
Offices, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU, on 
Wednesday, 11th January 2017 starting at 6.15pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Rochdale Township Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor Ali Ahmed                         Councillor Holly
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed                  Councillor Hornby
Councillor Shakil Ahmed                   Councillor Howard 
Councillor Daalat Ali                          Councillor Meredith
Councillor Sultan Ali                          Councillor Nickson 
Councillor Cecile Biant                      Councillor O’Neill (Chair)
Councillor Surinder Biant                  Councillor Rashid
Councillor Brett                                 Councillor Sheerin (Vice Chair)
Councillor Brosnan                           Councillor Sullivan
Councillor Cocks                               Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Duckworth                        Councillor Winkler
Councillor Farnell                              Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Gartside                           Councillor Mohammed Zaman
Councillor Heakin

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gv.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 11th January 2017 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 4 - 6

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Greater Manchester Police - Update 

3.  Open Forum 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

4.  Minutes 7 - 11

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township 
Committee held 30th November 2016.

5.  Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-
Committee 

12 - 16

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held 
15th November 2016.

6.  Review of Sites of Biological Importance (SBIs) - Brownhouse 
Wham and Hamer Pastures Reservoirs 

17 - 29

7.  Townships in Bloom 30 – 46



8.  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended.

9.  Disposal of Land to Rochdale Society of Model and 
Experimental Engineers 

47 - 50



P
age 4

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 5



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 6



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 30th November 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, 
Daalat Ali, Cecile Biant, Surinder Biant, Brett, Brosnan, Cocks, Farnell, 
James Gartside, Heakin, Holly, Hornby, Howard, Meredith, Nickson, Rashid, 
Sheerin, Sullivan, Wazir, Winkler and Zaman

OFFICERS:  D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place); M. Robinson (Assistant 
Director – Planning & Development); J. Murphy (Head of Finance); P. Gregory 
(Economy Directorate); M. Reynolds & V. White (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate); M. Garraway (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Neil Emmott;  Inspector R. Webb 
(Greater Manchester Police); and 2 members of public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Ahmed, Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Councillor Sultan Ali, Councillor Duckworth and Councillor Zaheer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
36 There were no declarations of interest.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE UPDATE
37 Inspector Webb (Greater Manchester Police) and M. Reynolds 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate) updated the Township Committee on activities 
and initiatives that were undertaken by Greater Manchester Police in the 
Rochdale Township Division.

In response to Members questions the Director of Neighbourhoods confirmed 
that the crime figures for Rochdale Town Centre provided to members of the 
Committee would, in future, be separated from the Ward figures.

DECIDED – That the Greater Manchester Police update be noted and 
welcomed. 

OPEN FORUM
38 The following matter was raised in the Committee’s Open Forum 
session:

a) Use of Springhill/Craiglands Fields
The Township Committee considered the views of Mr H Sutcliffe who 
addressed the Committee objecting to proposals to put a fence around the 
football pitch, which was being proposed to restrict the use of the pitch to 
football and stop dog waste being deposited on the field.    

Further to consideration of this item at the meeting of the Committee held 
on 21st September, the Leader of the Council advised that Legal Services 
were undertaking a comprehensive review of the site in order to establish 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



access and rights of the site; and that this information would be provided to 
all parties in due course. 

PRESENTATION - GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK
39 The Township received a presentation from the Assistant Director, 
(Planning and Development) relating to the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Strategy.
 
The Greater Manchester Spatial Strategy was a new statutory development 
plan for Greater Manchester which would, as a minimum:-
· Determine the amount and distribution of land which would be needed for 
new homes and employment development over the next 20 years, as well as 
identifying broad ‘strategic growth’ areas for development across Greater 
Manchester;
· Identify the necessary infrastructure (such as transport links and community 
facilities) which would be required to support development in those locations;
· Identify ways that the city-region’s green spaces can be protected alongside 
development so that great places where people want to live, work and visit 
can be developed;
· Ensure all Districts share the benefits of economic growth.
 
Details about the proposals for the Rochdale Borough were presented.
 
The Committee were informed that consultation on the proposals would run 
from 31st October – 23rd December 2016 and additional Township Drop in 
events would be held at Area Forums.

DECIDED – that the presentation relating to the Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework be noted.

MINUTES
40 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 21st 
September 2016 be approved as a correct record.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION & RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE
41 DECIDED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Sub-Committee held on 4th October 2016 
be noted.

SALE OF LAND AT TRUB STREET / MANCHESTER ROAD CASTLETON
42 The Council received a report from the Director of Economy seeking 
approval for the disposal of an area of land at Trub Street, Castleton on the 
open market.   The Committee were requested to confirm any buyer pays the 
Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs in respect of any agreed disposal of the 
site; and the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be 
authorised to carry out the legal work in connection with any disposal of the 
site.

The reasons for the recommendations being the site had been deemed 
surplus to requirements and disposal would generate a capital receipt.

Page 8



Alternatives considered: The report provided two alternative options for 
consideration, namely that the site could be retained as amenity grassland; or 
the site could be retained and sold at some time in the future.

DECIDED – That (1) the land identified within the submitted report at 
Trub Street, Castleton be disposed on the open market;
(2) The Buyer pays the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs in respect of 
any agreed disposal of the site;
(3) The Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be 
authorised to carry out the legal work in connection with any disposal of 
the site.

PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY
43 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which presented the draft Playing Pitch Strategy for 
consultation purposes.

The Strategy had been produced in accordance with the Sport England 
Playing Pitch Strategy Guidance.  The guidance was very rigid in its approach 
and strategies that deviate from this are not viewed favourably by the national 
governing bodies (NGBs) for the major pitch sports.  The NGBs and Sport 
England are required to sign off the strategy.

The aim of the strategy was to make sure that there was an adequate supply 
of good quality, accessible grass and artificial pitches in the Borough to meet 
current and future demands for formal pitch sports.  

The strategy covers all the main pitch sports – football, hockey, lacrosse, 
rounders, rugby league and rugby union.  It was Boroughwide and looked at 
pitches in council ownership, on school sites, owned by sports clubs and other 
providers.

In total over 300 pitches had been reviewed and assessed and consultation 
had been undertaken with over 500 playing teams, education establishments, 
leagues and governing bodies.

The strategy was set in the context of the Council’s corporate plans and set 
out how the Playing Pitch Strategy could help deliver the corporate objectives.  
It also looked at the changing national picture and priorities for sports and 
physical activity.

DECIDED – (1) that the draft Playing Pitch Strategy be supported;
(2) that residents and other stakeholders within the Township be 

invited to provide comments on the draft Playing Pitch Strategy before 
the 31st December 2016.

PROPOSED DISCRETIONARY FEES & CHARGES 2017/18
44 The Township Committee considered reports from the Council 
Directorates as listed below, outlining proposed discretionary fees and 

Page 9



charges for 2017/2018 for that had been approved by Cabinet on 31st October 
2016 for consultation purposes.
· Resources;
· Adult Care;
· Early Help and Schools;
· Public Protection;
· Planning and Building Control;
· Neighbourhoods;

The Authority carries out an annual review of discretionary fees and charges 
as part of the budget setting process. For the 2017/18 financial year, Cabinet 
had agreed to an increase of 5.0% on discretionary fees and charges, 
wherever possible, to ensure that the Authority sets a balanced budget for the 
forthcoming year (2017/18).

DECIDED – that the proposed discretionary fees and charges for 
2017/2018 for the Council Directorates listed above as detailed within the 
submitted reports, be noted.

SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND 2018/19 - GROUP 2 SAVINGS 
PROPOSALS
45 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Resources which presented the proposed Group 2 savings proposals that had 
been agreed by Cabinet on 21st November 2016 for consultation purposes as 
part of the strategy to reduce the funding gap. Based on current assumptions, 
the Council needed to make savings of £38.8m over the next two years to set 
a balanced budget.

Consultation on the proposals would be undertaken with the public, 
stakeholder groups, staff, unions and service users as appropriate. 
Consultation on the Group 2 proposals had commenced on 24th November 
2016 and would conclude on 9th January 2017.

DECIDED –that the proposed Group 2 savings proposals that had been 
agreed by Cabinet on 21st November 2016 for consultation purposes 
and as detailed within the submitted report be noted.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 TO 2019/20
46 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Resources, which provided details of the 2017/18 Capital Programme and 
provisional Capital programmes for 2018/19 and 2019/20, as detailed in 
Appendix 1 to the submitted report. 

Cabinet had considered the proposed Capital Programme for 2017/18 and 
provisional programme for 2018/19 and 2019/20 on 3rd October 2016 and 
approved it as a basis for consultation.

DECIDED – that the proposed Capital Programme for 2017/18 and 
provisional programme for 2018/19 and 2019/20 as detailed within the 
submitted report be noted.

Page 10



PROPOSED REMOVAL OF BT PAYPHONE BOX
47 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Economy which provided details of the receipt of a letter from British Telecom 
(BT) confirming its intention to remove a total of 27 payphones boxes across 
the Borough as listed in the appendix to the submitted report. 

The report sought views on the proposals to be forwarded to BT, together with 
any public views received by the Council before the consultation expiry date.

DECIDED – that the report be noted.

TOWNSHIP HIGHWAYS CHAMPION REPORT - VERBAL UPDATE
48 Councillor O’Neill, the Rochdale Township Highways Champion, 
updated the Committee on matters that had been considered by the Township 
Highways Champions, which included:-

 Structural patching has been planned on 69 streets in Rochdale so far 
with a total estimated spend of spend of £301k. The allocated work will 
improve the condition of 10119m2 of carriageway within the township;

 The winter service programme was in operation between October and 
March;

 93 defective gullys have been identified as part of the drainage repair 
programme and will be replaced within quarter 3.

DECIDED – that the report of the Rochdale Township Highways 
Champion be noted.

Page 11



ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 15th November 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Cecile Biant (Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Heakin, 
O'Neill, Sheerin, Sullivan, Winkler and Zaman.

OFFICERS:  V White and J Grahamslaw (Neighbourhoods Directorate), S Shahid 
(Resources Directorate). 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  7 members of the public. 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Sultan Ali and Councillor Farnell.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
31 In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Sheerin 
declared a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of agenda item 12 (RP/07/16 - 
Celebrate Rochdale Day at Touchstones) as he has been appointed by the Council 
to the Board of Link4Life.  Councillor Sheerin left the room during the consideration of 
the application. 

The Chair, Councillor Cecile Biant, declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
respect of item 12 (RP/10/16 – Heritage Wrought Iron Fencing) as she is on the 
Board of Friends of Denehurst Park.    Councillor Cecile Biant left the room during 
consideration of the application. 

MINUTES
32 DECIDED – that the minutes of the Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Committee held on 4th October 2016, be approved as a correct 
record. 

HEALEY AREA FORUM
33 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Healey Area Forum
held on 8th September 2016, be noted. 

NORDEN AREA FORUM
34 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Norden Area Forum
held on 14th September 2016, be noted. 

BALDERSTONE AND KIRKHOLT COMMUNITY MEETING
35 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Balderstone and Kirkholt 
Community Meeting held on 20th September 2016, be noted. 

MILKSTONE AND DEEPLISH AREA FORUM
36 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Milkstone and 
Deeplish Area Forum held on 26th September 2016, be noted. 

SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
37 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Spotland and Falinge
Area Forum held on 29th September 2016, be noted. 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP CLEAN AND GREEN PRIORITY GROUP

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



38 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Clean and 
Green Priority Group held on 22nd September 2016, be noted.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITIES AND ENGAGEMENT PRIORITY GROUP
39 DECIDED – That the minutes of the Rochdale Township Clean and 
Green Priority Group held on 28th September 2016, be noted.

COMMUNITY CENTRE MONITORING
40 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
updating members on the community centre monitoring process for 2016.  Members 
were provided with information relating to quarter one (April, May and June 2016) 
and quarter two (July, August and September).

The Committee were advised that the monitoring process was first implemented in 
April 2012 to enable Members to monitor performance against the targets set by 
each community centre on a quarterly basis.  It was reported that the process had 
been reviewed and improved on an annual basis and more detailed information 
about the individual community centres would be made available upon request. 

The recommendation was put forward as community centres are delivering in relation 
to the Public Health indicators. Public Health team are satisfied and impressed with 
the work/activities being delivered by community centres.

DECIDED – that (1) the report be noted;
(2) that the current monitoring arrangements for community centres be 

continued.

Eligible for Call-in: no. 

ROCHDALE BLUE PLAQUE SCHEME
41 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
detailing the guidance criteria which could be used as a basis for making decisions 
about future nominations for public commemorative blue plaques based in the 
Rochdale Township area.

The recommendation was put forward as there was currently no blue plaque scheme 
for Rochdale Township.  This meant that no existing criteria could be used as a basis 
for assessing requests for blue plaques to commemorate local buildings, people and 
events.  On the 15th September 2016, Pennines Township Members approved a 
commemorative plaque scheme for the Pennines Township area.

Rochdale Borough Council receives requests for blue plaques from Members of the 
public and there was no effective and systematic approach for determining whether 
to approve such requests in the Rochdale Township.  

Establishing a blue plaque scheme for Rochdale Township and agreeing a criteria 
which could be used as a basis of assessment would preserve the interest of the 
blue plaque scheme locally and would ensure that decisions about nominations for 
blue plaques were consistent and sensitive to the local historical environment. 

DECIDED – that the report be noted;
(2) that the guidance criteria (as detailed in the submitted report) be 

approved and used as a framework and guidance for the assessments of blue 
plaque nominations. 

Page 13



Eligible for Call-in: no.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2016/17
42 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which updated the Sub-Committee on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Rochdale Township Fund 2016/2017, to enable the Sub-Committee 
to allocate funds to proposed projects.

The recommendations contained in the report were presented as the management of
the Rochdale Township Fund was a function delegated to this Sub-Committee to
determine. The Rochdale Township Funds were designed to be allocated to projects
that benefit the Township’s communities and environment and which realise the
Township’s stated priorities. The Sub-Committee monitors and reviews the use of the 
Rochdale Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the
Township’s Funds.

The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments and balances
for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2,
the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 to the
submitted report and to consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of funds 
to proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4. 

Members of the Rochdale Township Action and Resource Sub-Committee were 
requested to note the Principal Townships Officer’s assessment of the proposed 
projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility for the Rochdale 
Township Fund, priorities of the Township and any specific risks identified.

Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to decide
Whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes as appropriate. 

The Sub-Committee considered representations from Ms S Acton in relation to 
application RP/01/16 – Syke Chapel Parking Bays and TC/16/16 – Hamer Lane 
Loading Bay.

The Sub-Committee considered representations from Ms L O’Neill in relation to 
application RP/07/16. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered representations from Mr O’Brien in relation to 
application RP/11/16 – Rooley Moor Road Speed Surveys.

DECIDED – That (1) the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
Township Revenue and Capital Funds, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the
submitted report be noted;

(2) the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed at
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be noted;

(3) it be noted that the Principal Township Officer had assessed the
proposed projects to be considered for funding, against the criteria of the
Rochdale Township Fund, priorities of the Township Plan and any specific
risks had been identified, (as detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report);

(4) the Principal Townships Officer, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice Chair and opposition spokespersons of the Committee, be given
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

(6) applications for Township Funds, (as outlined in appendix 4 of the
submitted report); and as, verbally updated by the Principal Township
Officer, be dealt with as follows:-

Page 14



APPLICANT PROJECT/SCHEME DECISION
Councillor O’Neill Syke Chapel Parking Bays 

Scheme. 
Approve an allocation of 
£2,500 from the Projects 
Fund for the Syke Chapel 
Parking Bay Scheme. 

Touchstones Celebrate Rochdale Day 
at Touchstones

Approve an allocation of 
£2,000 from the Projects 
Fund for the Celebrate 
Rochdale Day at 
Touchstones event

Rochdale AFC and GMP Spotland Stadium No 
Waiting Cones.

Approve an allocation of 
£1,500 from the Projects 
Fund for the Spotland 
Stadium No Waiting 
Cones.

Residents via the Spotland 
and Falinge Area Forum

Heritage Wrought iron 
Fencing project. 

The application for the 
Heritage Wrought Iron 
Fencing project be 
refused. 

Councillor Cecile Biant Rooley Moor Road Speed 
Surveys Scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£2,000 from the Projects 
Fund with a request to a) 
revise the costings and b) 
with a request to raise at 
TMU regarding the 
possibility of GMP 
supporting signage e.g. 
‘COMMUNITY CONCERN 
SPEED AREA’. 

Rochdale Air Training 
Cadets. 

Ashfield Road Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme.

The application for the 
Ashfield Road Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme be 
withdrawn. Ward 
Councillors be requested 
to visit the applicant to 
investigate alternative 
options and the applicant 
be invited to submit a 
revised application 

37th Rochdale Scouts Silk Street Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme.

The application for the Silk 
Street Waiting Restriction 
Scheme be refused. 

Local Business Hamer Lane Loading Bay 
Scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£4,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Hamer Lane 
Loading Bay Scheme. 

Resident Shawclough Road Waiting 
Restrictions Scheme.

The application for the 
Shawclough Road Waiting 
Restriction Scheme be 
refused.

Ward Councillor Longfield Road 20mph Approve an allocation of 

Page 15



Zone and Traffic Calming 
Measures Scheme. 

£8,940 from the Capital 
Fund for the Longfield 
Road 20mph Zone and 
Traffic Calming Measures 
Scheme. 

Ward Councillors Hill Street and Barlow 
Street Area Restrictions 
Scheme. 

Approve an allocation of 
£3,000 from the Capital 
Fund for the Hill Street 
and Barlow Street Area 
Restrictions Scheme

Councillor Heakin Whitworth Road/Healey 
Lane Waiting Restrictions 
Scheme.

The application for the 
Whitworth Road/Healey 
Lane Waiting Restrictions 
Scheme be refused. 

Councillor Farnell Parking Bays at the rear of 
Town Hall Scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£5,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Parking Bays 
at the rear of Town Hall 
Scheme.

Councillor Cecile Biant Ings Lane/Great Flats 
Parking Review Scheme.

Approve an allocation of 
£5,500 from the Capital 
Fund for the Ings 
Lane/Great Flats Parking 
Review Scheme

Eligible for Call-in: yes.

Page 16



Subject: Review of Sites of Biological 
Importance (SBIs) - Brownhouse Wham and 
Hamer Pastures Reservoirs

Status:  Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services and Regulation

Date: Wednesday, 11 January 2017
 

Report of: Director of Economy

Author Email:    andrew.eadie@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Andrew Eadie

Tel: Tel: 01706 924371

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Committee of a proposed change to the 
Brownhouse Wham and Hamer pastures reservoirs Site of Biological Importance 
(SBI). Members are asked to approve the change and the consequent update of 
the local SBI register for planning purposes.

2 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that Township Committee approves the change to the SBI and 
the SBI register as detailed in this report, for planning purposes. This is because the 
proposed change will increase the area of important local habitat to be protected for 
the benefit of biodiversity and the quality of the local environment, for planning and 
potential funding purposes.

3 Background

3.1Sites of Biological Importance (SBIs) are areas of nature conservation importance 
defined on a Greater Manchester wide basis, which contain valuable habitats, 
animal and plant communities and also locally rare habitat types. They are 
classified under three grades: grade ‘A’, which are sites of county and regional 
importance, grade ‘B’, which are of district importance, and grade ‘C’, which are of 
more than local importance. New sites are added and existing sites monitored and 
reviewed by the Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU).

3.2 SBIs do not have statutory protection (i.e. landowners do not have to protect the 
biodiversity on the site by law), however they can be taken into consideration when 
assessing planning proposals which may affect them, and GMEU liaise with 
landowners to try and ensure that land is managed in a way which does not harm 
the biodiversity. Proposed new sites, re-grades and boundary changes are reported 
to the relevant Township Committee in order that they may be adopted locally for 
planning purposes i.e. to support the assessment and determination of 
development proposals seeking planning permission which may affect an SBI.

3.3 We have recently received the results of the Review which GMEU carried out in 
2015. They have recommended the following change to an SBI in Rochdale 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Township:

 Increase the size of Brownhouse Wham and Hamer Pastures Reservoirs SBI 
by 1.4 hectares (see map attached). This site, which is grade B, is just north of 
Syke and consists of two disused catchment reservoirs and surrounding area 
that have developed significant ecological interest; it supports open water, 
neutral grassland, acid grassland, bog and mire. The extension would 
incorporate additional bankside vegetation which is mainly grasslands: species 
include crested dogs-tail, matt grass, sweet vernal grass, tormentil, sheep’s 
sorrel, common sorrel, bluebell, plantain, bilberry and field woodrush.

Alternatives considered

3.4 To inform the Greater Manchester Ecology Unit that the Council does not wish to 
approve the change detailed in the report for planning purposes. This would mean 
that the SBI would not carry as much weight in planning decisions that may affect 
it and other decisions which may affect it, such as applications for funding.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 There are no financial implications relating to this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 A Site of Biological Importance (SBI) is a non-statutory site of importance for 
nature conservation. However, under Section 40 of the Natural Environment and 
Rural Communities Act 2006, the Council, as a public authority, in exercising its 
functions, must have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of 
those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity. Conserving biodiversity 
includes taking steps to restore or enhance the status of a habitat and to update 
the local SBI register as appropriate. 

5.2 Consequently, the Council in its capacity as Planning Authority is required when 
assessing planning proposals which may affect an SBI to consider the effect of 
that development and to have regard to the conservation of biological diversity.

5.3 The Council should also have due deference and regard to any associated 
guidance issued by the Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs 
(DEFRA).

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no personnel implications relating to this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1 The Council’s Green Infrastructure Plans support biodiversity sites and networks, 
and the Rochdale Borough Sustainable Community Strategy includes 
indicators/measures for increasing the borough’s biodiversity and delivering the 
Rochdale Biodiversity Action Plan.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

9. Equalities Impacts

Page 18



9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 19



Page 20



1

APPENDIX 

Equality Impact Assessment

 

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below.

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below

Non-statutory location-specific local land designation

Service:

Planning and Development

Section: 

Strategic Planning

Responsible Officer:

Andrew Eadie

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed:

Extension to Brownhouse Wham and Hamer Pastures 
Reservoirs Site of Biological Importance (SBI)

Date of Assessment: 16th November 2016

Officers Involved:

Andrew Eadie

Page 21



2

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed?

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project)

The aim of the proposed extension to the SBI is to increase the area of important habitat and vegetation 
which can be taken into consideration when planning proposals in the area are being considered, and also 
when funding for biodiversity improvements is being sought.  

2.Who are the key stakeholders?

The key stakeholders are the landowner and the Council.

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 
assessment.  

A review of the equalities impacts of the proposal.

Page 22



3

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet?

The needs of local biodiversity and the quality of the local environment.

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken?

No

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project?

The landowner.

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 
who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology.

The Greater Manchester Ecology Unit have carried out a review and we are reporting their findings. We are not 
carrying out any specific consultation.

Page 23



4

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  
What action will be taken to close any data gaps?

The data of the biodiversity present on the site was gathered by the Greater Manchester Ecology 
Unit and they have analysed it in order to make their recommendation.

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 
include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available.

No

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 
includes both positive and potentially negative impacts.

Race Equality 

No impact.

Page 24



5

Disabled People

No impact.

Carers

No impact

Gender

No impact

Age

No impact

Page 25



6

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel

No impact

Sexual Orientation

No impact

Gender Reassignment

No impact

Religion or Belief

No impact

Page 26



7

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave

No impact

Marriage or Civil Partnership

No impact

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis?

There are no impacts on any of the identified groups.

12.What are your recommendations?

None.

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 
action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions.

Page 27



8

Signed (Completing Officer):____Andrew Eadie_______________Date:_____16th 
November 2016________

Signed (Head of Service): ____________________ Date:_____________

Page 28



9

Equality Impact Assessment Action Plan 2014/15

Action Outcome Target Date For 
Completion

Resource 
Implications

Lead Officer

P
age 29



Subject: Townships in Bloom Status:  Publication

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Environment

Date: Wednesday, 30 November 2016
 

Report of: Director of Neighbourhoods

Author Email:    
gordon.beverley@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Gordon Beverley

Tel: Tel: 01706922017

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To Update Members on Environmental Landscape Improvement projects achieved 
in 2016 across the Township.

1.2  To update Members on improvements to our grounds and streets maintenance 
programmes and methods of work.  

1.3 To update Members on the impact of the above improvements in raising the 
Council and Township profile / winning Britain in Bloom Awards

1.4 To Update Members on potential further improvements 2017 and seek feedback 
and ideas from Members

2 Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to note the scope of works carried out in 2016 (See Appendix 
3 for photo record) and the positive impact they have had on the Council and 
Township reputation (see Appendix 4, Media Coverage)

2.2 Members are asked to contact Environmental Management (EM) Services via Ian 
Trickett with any requests they have for schemes in 2017 and to consider and feed 
back to Ian Trickett on the EM scheme draft proposals for 2017 (Appendix 2)

2.3 Members are asked to consider if any Township funding would be available to add 
to EM Services planned spend in Rochdale Township in 2017

Reason for recommendation

2.4 To keep Members informed on impact of schemes / maintenance improvements 
carried out in 2016 and positive press coverage that has resulted

2.5 To give Members an opportunity to propose ideas for 2017 and comment on EM 
funded proposed schemes within the Township (see appendix 2)

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



3 Background

3.1 In 2016 EM Services took a radical new approach to landscaping and maintenance 
methods, the main aspects of which were:

Concentration of resources in Town Centres and main gateways for maximum effect

Maintenance:
- Deep cleaning of Town Centres, including major graffiti removal on all 

sites, not just EM land structures.  This included Utilities boxes, buildings in 
private ownership etc

- Rapid response to remove Fly tipping, regardless of who owns the land
- Professionally organised route and site clean-up operations for In Bloom 

inspections, linking numerous different maintenance teams (Street 
Sweepers, Enforcement Staff, Hit Teams, Grounds Maintenance and 
Streets staff) to achieve much higher standards than previous years

Landscape Schemes:
- Higher quality Street Furniture installed e.g. new oval shaped Timber and 

galvanised steel planters opposite Number One Riverside
- Innovate landscaping designs / themes such as the Mini installation and 

landscaping at Junction Roch Valley Way / Edinburgh Way / A58
- Natural landscaping schemes such as mini annual flower meadow and tree 

planting at Sudden Junction / A58
- Higher quality herbaceous schemes using limited palette of colours / plants 

such as the Purple / Blue ribbon of lavender and verbena at St Mary’s Gate

3.2 Analysis of individual landscaping schemes (see Appendix 3 for photo record):
- Sudden Junction Annual flower meadow / tree planting: Well received, 

looks good, no vandalism.  Repeat seed sowing required 2017
- Mini at Roch Valley Way: Tremendous public response.  Minor vandalism 

to car on two occasions dealt with immediately.  Minor top up planting 2017
- Planters Town Centre and Train Station: Well received.  Assess planting 

2017 – some overcrowding of plants
- Hanging baskets Town Hall and wall mounted baskets link path Memorial 

Gardens to York St well received – repeat 2017
- St Mary’s Gate lavender / Verbena ribbon.  Looks good, assess if any die 

back and gap up as required 2017 with yellow flower Rudbeckia
- Rochdale Memorial Gardens – improvements well received – herbaceous 

border plants settling in now – minor gapping up 2017
- Oldham Road bus stop – First phase of scheme to remove trees / shrubs 

making area feel dark and dangerous completed but new landscaping 
scheme will need to be installed 2017 to finish the job

- Celebrating the Queen’s 90th Birthday cut out Manchester Road – no 
specific feedback from public but certainly no complaints.  Maybe more 
high profile site needed for any similar schemes in 2017

- Townships In Bloom sign at all high profile landscaping schemes a great 
success at ensuring public identify the scheme with the Council / Township

3.3 Impact of improvements regards the RHS North West In Bloom Awards.  
- In 2015 Rochdale overall achieved a Silver Gilt Award.  This year we 

achieved a coveted Gold Medal Award.  
- Much press coverage – Awards received Friday 28th October and by 

following Tuesday already 6 articles in Rochdale Online from In Bloom 
groups and praising the work the Council had put into In Bloom this year 
(See Appendix 4)

Page 31



- Additional In Bloom Award for Rochdale Town Centre – a new application 
achieved Silver Gilt Award.  Excellent joint working between EM Services, 
RDA, Town Centre Manager and local businesses meant this superb score 
at a first attempt.  When we get score sheet feedback we will be able to 
see weaknesses that need to be addressed to get a Gold Medal in 2017

- Additional Award for Jubilee Park in Norden obtaining the highest possible 
Level 5 Outstanding in the “Its Your Neighbourhood” Category

- Additional Award for Roch Valley Outdoor Learning Site, supported by our 
Countryside Rangers, obtaining the highest possible Level 5 Outstanding 
in the “Its Your Neighbourhood” Category

- Additional North West Heritage Award for the Revealing the Roch project

3.4: 2017 and onwards.  Members are invited to contact Ian Trickett with suggestions 
for further improvements.  Members are invited to comment on draft proposals from 
EM Services in Appendix 2, via Ian Trickett.  Members are invited to consider if any 
Township funding from this and / or next financial year can be provided to assist EM 
Services in delivering a programme of further improvements in 2017. Delivery of a 
programme of works for 2017 is dependent on funding being put in place from EM 
Service budgets and with contributions from Township and external grant sources.

Alternatives considered

3.5 No additional resources for 2017 and keep at the standard currently achieved.  
Risk is loss of momentum in support from voluntary, business and other sector 
partners and slow slide backwards.  Loss of momentum in continual improvement that 
we hope will eventually lead to Rochdale winning Best in the North West category and 
representing the North West at the National In Bloom Awards (something Bury Council 
have won for about 10 years on the trot)

4 Financial Implications

4.1 Maintenance costs are being bet by EM Services.  Township funding and 
external grant funding is being sought to add to EM funding for creation of new 
schemes in 2017 and minor works to ensure 2016 schemes continue to shine.

4.2 EM Services funded projects in 2016 from Service budgets but capacity to do 
that in 2017 / 18 may be reduced due to ongoing budget savings 
requirements.  The scope of the projects program may have to be scaled down 
unless additional funding streams are obtained.

5  Legal Implications

5.1 There are no known legal implications arising from this report

5.2 The Head of Legal, Governance & Workforce be authorised to advise the Head 
of Environmental Management in respect of any land title issues arising out of 
the schemes proposed by this report

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 There are no known personnel implications arising from this report

7 Corporate Priorities

Page 32



7.1 “Place” priority in the Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 Loss of reputation if progress is not continues

8.2 Volume of new schemes outstrips ability of staff to maintain them to a high 
standard.  Issue already identified and being dealt with.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no known (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no known (significant) equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 33



1 
 

Rochdale In Bloom 2017 Draft EM Landscape Proposals  
 

1st Draft November 2016 

 

Main Themes: 

 Analysing landscaping schemes that fell short in 2016 and upgrading  

 Replacing ugly, litter trapping shrub beds with easy to maintain turf and attractive 

additional tree planting, varieties chosen for spring flowers & autumn colour 

 New landscape features to match the innovation shown in 2016 

 Staffing arrangements to ensure flower displays will be maintained to a good standard 

 

Over-arching proposals that will impact on Rochdale Township 

 Creating an additional 2 person seasonal team to maintain the new facilities mid April 

– mid October and to assist with new scheme creation. Two Scale 4 operatives plus 

vehicle, mower for box mowing and horticultural equipment.   

 Improved bedding displays by improving the planting out process.  Issues to address: 

- Ensuring 100% of bedding is planted out in timely manner as this affects 

how well they grow and flower 

- Ensuring every site has a bedding plan with agreed bed size and number of 

plants and layout 

- Ensuring staff equipment and training to do the job properly 

- Supervisor post-inspects to quality of work 

 Purchase of industrial rotavator to be shared by parks, streets and Countryside to 

enable us to deliver new annual flower displays rather than paying external contractor.  

This would realise annual cost savings and provide flexibility for new schemes. 

 Increase Bowlee poly-tunnel capacity / new baskets, to enable trailing plant hanging 

baskets.  Not enough space in current tunnels for the extra plants for side planting 

baskets to disguise the presence of the basket 

 Contractor Town Centre and In Bloom routes deep clean, graffiti and chewing gum 

removal program 

 

Rochdale Township Ideas 

 Shrub bed removals: 

- Mandale Park Manchester Road selected tree removals and invasive cotoneaster 

removal woodland front (below left) and shrub bed opposite by church 

- Samuel St, Castleton (below middle) and Abbott St , Castleton (below right 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Completion Oldham Road bus station scheme started 2016.  Felling 1 tree and 

construction of asymmetrical angular planter, constructed with railway sleeper size 

timbers.  Removal of some remnant shrubs, soiling up and turfing. 

 Opposite Springfield Park entry: plant 8 upright cherry trees in street verge (gap up) 

 
 

 

Page 34



2 
 

 Handcart with flowers on it and wicker man pushing cart at Rochdale Market site 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Installation at Queensway / Oldham Rd gyratory of large scale old rusty industrial 

metal and shiny new industrial metal to show our industrial heritage and we have new 

successful industry in the Borough. Councillor Farnell has mooted we do something 

here. Planting scheme of rust and silver colour flower & foliage plants (Russian sage, 

Rudbeckia cherry brandy etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 Balderstone Park wildflower meadow that needs a refresh.  Weed spray, rotavate and 

seed with 3m band at front of meadow with annual flowers 

 Daventry Road planting scheme requested by Councillor Farnell to replace failed 

daffodil scheme.  Specific location planting in similar style to Summit in Heywood 

 New triangular rockery planting scheme to be maintained by the community at 

Edenfield Rd / Ashbourne St, Norden 

 Broadfield Park wildflower meadow next to pond. Spray, rotavate and see 1.5m band 

to front of meadow with annual flower seed 

 Broadfield Slopes: eye-sore from the Esplanade. Hard to maintain so steep.  Over-

growth of trees and shrubs have created a wall of vegetation (picture below).  Start 

Touchstones end and trial 1 section shrub & problem tree removal. Install maintenance 

access paths. Replant with heathers, juniper, silver birch, Scots pine etc per original 

design of a romanticised Scottish Glen.  Relocate glacial boulder as a centrepiece.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 Possible contacts for materials: Reynolds, Ellenrod, ELR 

 

Touchstones 

Town 

Hall 

Page 35



3 
 

 St Chad’s traffic island (below): Strip turf off & replant 

with lavender and yellow santolina (pictured right) 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 St Chad’s old Graveyard: Pedestrian gateway into Town.  Remove all shrubs to Drake 

St side (picture below middle) and inside the site to deter anti-social behaviour 

problems. Selected tree felling of dead trees and trees pushing boundary wall over.  

Re-plant for greater variety / mini arboretum.  Small scale replanting of lavender, 

santolina and escholzia to repeat planting round corner at St Chad’s traffic Island 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 St Chad’s Gardens pedestrian gateway to Town. Remove all shrubs to deter antisocial 

behaviour problems and turf up to paths.  Create new scented gardens with rows of 

herbs (lavender, fennel, rosemary) inter-planted with accent flowers (verbena, 

rudbeckia and santolina) for various shaded of blue / purple and yellows flowering 

from early summer to late autumn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 Fennel & verbena pictured at Kew  

 

 

Rudbeckia  

Lavender & santolina Page 36



4 
 

Costs estimate for all proposed Rochdale schemes 
 

Location Project description Elements Costs 

Overarching 2 man seasonal install & 
maintenance team 

Staff costs: 50% share Service budget 
and In Bloom budget (wages, NI etc) 

£14k In Bloom 
£14k Service 

Vehicle hire, mower etc £3k In Bloom 
£3k Service 

Bedding standards 
improvement 

New system for timely planting up £nil 

Performance management £nil 

Bring Pictorial Meadows 
contractor job in house to 
be delivered by Rangers 

Purchase rotavator (v.heavy duty) to 
be shared by Streets, Parks, Rangers 
to replace dinosaur model at Bowlee 
cost neutral yr1 and £4k saving yr 2 on 

£4k year 1 cost 
for machinery 
£3.5k in house 
annual costs  

Bowlee Polytunnel 
capacity increase for 
better hanging baskets 

Construction new polytunnel £8k 

New baskets (part offset by sale old 
baskets) 

£2k 

In Bloom signs for c7 sites  £4k 

 No Graffiti Clean Town 
Centre & In Bloom route 

Focused clean of town centres and 
inspection route in bloom judges take  

£10k  

Total Costs Over-arching Schemes (quarter share for Rochdale Township) £69.5k 

    

Rochdale Mandale A58 frontage Shrub bed and selected tree removal 
Mandale & Church side Rd, plant tree 

£2,500k 

Samuel St and Abbot st, Castleton 
shrub bed removals & grass seed 

£500 

Oldham Rd bus stop 
scheme completion 

Fell 1 tree and remove remaining 
shrubs, soil up and grass seed 

£800 

Bespoke timber planter, soil & plants £600 

Market handcart Purchase of handcart, construction of 
tiered planter to get height 

£2k 

Queensway / Oldham 
Road gyratory industrial 
metal art installation 

Purchase and large scale installation 
industrial metal (Township grant to be sought) 

£5k  

Soil up and planting scheme round 
metal installation 

£800 

Opposite Springfield Park  Plant 8 cherry trees street verges £1k 

Balderstone Park meadow Spray, Rotavate and re-seed in house £350 

Broadfield Park meadow Spray, Rotavate and re-seed in house £250 

Broadfield Slopes first 
phase replanting 

Shrub removal, weed spraying and 
tree felling 

£4k 

Maintenance path construction £2k 

Tree and shrub replanting £6k 

Boulder relocation £800 

Bridge up-lighting £2k 

St Chad’s traffic island Strip turf, re-soil ready for planting £300 

Plants £500 

St Chad’s old graveyard Tree felling and stump grinding, shrub 
bed removal and re-soiling 

£3k 

Selected tree re-planting, turfing and 
limited flower planting scheme 

£1,500 

St Chad’s Gardens 
(opposite Packer Spout) 

Stripping out all the old shrub beds, 
re-soiling and turfing 

£1,000 

Potential tree felling and re-planting  £2,500 

Planting scheme (seek £5k Township grant) £6k  

Daventry Road planting 
scheme 

Strip turf, re-soil and purchase plants £1,500 

Sudden Junction Annual 
Flower Meadow 

Weed spray, Rotavate and re-seed £400 

Edenfield Road rockery Purchase boulder, soiling up, plants £nil Township project 

Total Rochdale Costs £42,300 
 Page 37



Appendix 3: Photo Record 2016 Landscape Schemes  

 

Rochdale Township 

 

Town Centre Planters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

Before: Barren Number One 

Riverside Frontage 

After: 5 new, high quality oval planters, silver birch and flowers 

Before: Gap resulting in cut through 

– trampled plants & bare soil 

After: new high quality bespoke planter, simple planting scheme 

Before: Large area of bland paving 

After: 5 oval planters arranged in a petal shape, with 

central foliage interest shrub, herbs and flowers 

Page 38



Town Centre Baskets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Centre Deep Clean 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Centre Memorial Gardens 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Graffiti removed throughout the Town Centre. Pictures above 

are before and after graffiti removal on private business’s fire 

exit door to Town Centre pedestrian route.  Utility boxes also 

had graffiti removed.  No graffiti left in Town Centre 

EVERYTHING removed. 
   

Pictured Right, example of jet washing to remove mould / 

algae growth.  Chewing gum also removed. 

 

 

  

 Before: Bland alley 

After: Attractive hanging 

baskets to brighten up 

Eyore’s gloomy corner 

After: Town Hall Hanging baskets 

back after 20 year absence 

After: New herbaceous border planting 

topped up and blooming well 

After: Re-planted beds with new box hedging & central shrubs 

providing structure to frame the annual bedding display 

Page 39



Gateway Routes Into / Out of Town 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 
After Clean up 

Richard Street: Private 

land before clean up 

Before: Ugly shrub bed self-seeded sycamore 

trees left to grow forming ugly & dark treescape 

After: Beautiful annual flower display and new trees 

chosen for autumn foliage interest 

After: Beautiful purple / blue flower display of 

lavender and verbena in 80m long ribbon  

Before: Old annual beds removed and boring 

grassed area on main entry into Rochdale  

After: 2.4m tall display to showcase Queen’s life over 90 years  

Page 40



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mini at purchase, before being prepared 

Stripped out & repainted mini installed 

Being planted up After: All planted up, sign proudly displayed and loved 

After: Broadfield Poppy display in 

ordinary bedding (a massive cost 

saving compared to previous year’s 

carpet bedding scheme but retaining 

the all important World War 1 theme 

Page 41



Appendix 4: Media Coverage within 4 days of Award Ceremony 

 

 

Golden success at RHS ‘In Bloom’ awards 
Date published: 30 October 2016 

 

Rochdale - Gold medal Best Large Town, Small City - RHS North West in Bloom Awards 2016 

Rochdale won a raft of awards, including a Gold Award, in this year’s North West in Bloom competition, 

staged by the Royal Horticultural Society (RHS). Rochdale’s entry highlights some of the best horticultural 

projects from across the town and shines a light on some of the amazing work being done by community 

groups, schools, businesses and residents, alongside more structured municipal planting. 

When the RHS judges visited back in July, they commented positively on the way in which Rochdale 

focuses on community involvement. 

The Gold Award came following a lengthy list of individual accolades for businesses, projects and 

attractions around the town which included:  

 Gold Medal and Overall North West Champion for Springhill Hospice in the Best Hospice Grounds 

category 

 Gold Medal and Overall North West Champion for Zen Internet in the Best Commercial Premises 

category 

 Gold Medal for The Flying Horse in the Best Small Accommodation category 

 The Heritage Award for the reopening of the River Roch 

 Silver Gilt in the Best Town Centre category 

 Outstanding Achievement for the Cutgate Alley Gate Scheme 

 Outstanding Achievement for Jubilee Park in Norden 

 Outstanding Achievement for Moss Row Allotments 

 Outstanding Achievement for The Growth Project 

 Outstanding Achievement for the Roch Valley Outdoor Learning Centre 

 Thriving Achievement for Castleton Station 

 Thriving Achievement for the residents gardens at Ravendale Sheltered Housing Complex 

Page 42

https://www.rochdaleonline.co.uk/
https://www.rochdaleonline.co.uk/news-features/viewer?NewsID=105920


Many more awards were also received in Heywood and the Pennines under their individual entries, making 

this a truly incredible achievement across the whole borough. 

Mayor Ray Dutton was on hand to help receive the awards, along with committee members, and staff from 

the Council Environmental Management team, he said: “I am delighted to have been the Mayor in a year 

that Rochdale Borough had done so exceptionally well.” 

Rochdale Township in Bloom Chairman, Nigel Morrell said: “This year’s victories are the culmination of six 

years of consistent effort by volunteers from throughout the Township. This year we have undoubtedly 

benefitted from the involvement of Rochdale Town Centre Management Company as well as increased 

support from Rochdale Council Environmental Management department. Our Success along with that of 

Heywood and Pennines in Bloom groups makes Rochdale a key player in RHS in Bloom in the North West.“ 

Vice Chairman and Schools Coordinator, Roy Down commented: “This year’s results are a testimony to the 

efforts put in by our team and groups representing all sections of the community in our town.” 

An event at Rochdale Town Hall is now to be planned to congratulate all involved and to showcase the 

awards.   

 
Jubilee Park 'Outstanding' in RHS ‘Britain In 
Bloom’ awards 
Date published: 26 October 2016 

 

Paul Ellison and Phil Starr with the award for Jubilee Park 

Norden’s Jubilee Park enjoyed ‘outstanding’ success this week representing the Borough in the RHS ‘Britain 

In Bloom’ awards achieving a maximum level five 'Outstanding' for the North West ‘It’s Your 

Neighbourhood’ category. 

 

The judges were particularly impressed with the new planting in the park and the community involvement.  

 

 

Page 43

https://www.rochdaleonline.co.uk/


 
Friends of Hopwood Park ‘Outstanding’ in RHS 
Britain In Bloom awards 
Date published: 29 October 2016 

 

Amanda Almond and Margaret Ryan receive the Hopwood Park RHS Britain In Bloom award 

The Friends of Hopwood Park have achieved a level five 'Outstanding' award for the second year running at 

the ‘It’s Your Neighbourhood’ awards at the Royal Horticultural Society’s North West In Bloom Competition. 

 

Chairwoman of the Friends of Hopwood Park, Sandra Trickett, said: “We are delighted that Friends of 

Hopwood Park received level five outstanding for the second year running.”  

 

CEO and chairwoman of Heywood In Bloom, Ellen Wintle Yates, said: “A lot of hard work goes into an 

award of outstanding. Thanks to all those involved in creating a wonderful park and a great community 

area all of Heywood can be proud of. We quickly forget just how bad a state this area reached before 

Sandra and the Friends turned it around.” 

 

 Page 44

https://www.rochdaleonline.co.uk/


Pennines Township awarded six Britain In Bloom 
Awards 
Date published: 27 October 2016 

 

Pennines In Bloom members with their awards 

Pennines Township has been awarded six 'Britain In Bloom - North West 'It's Your Neighbourhood Awards 

2016'. The judging for this year's awards took place earlier this summer and the results have just been 

released. 

 

Councillor Ann Stott, JP said: “It was a great start to the three-day event for the Pennines Township as it 

was awarded six awards in this category. 

 

Thriving Awards were given to: 

 Watergrove Reservoir 

 Wardle Village Square & Green 

 Littleborough 

 Milnrow Memorial Park 

Outstanding Awards were given to:  

 Hare Hill Park, Littleborough 

 Ladybarn Bowling Club, Milnrow 

Councillor Stott added: “Pennines In Bloom, the driving force, behind the entries for the awards, aided by 

the Friends of Hare Hill and Milnrow Parks, were delighted by the excellent start, and hope for more later in 

the week.” 

 

Heywood in Bloom win Gold Medal Award in this 
year’s RHS North West in Bloom  

Page 45



Date published: 31 October 2016 
 

 

Heywood in Bloom members at this year’s RHS North West in Bloom Awards ceremony 

Heywood in Bloom won a Gold Medal award for their entry into this year’s RHS North West in Bloom 

competition.  

 

Chairwoman Ellen Wintle-Yates said: “We have worked hard to reach the standard of Gold and we want to 

thank everyone who has been involved with this year’s entry.  

 

“The support we receive and the local sponsorship mean we have been able to add more new displays each 

year. We have recently worked with Heywood Rotary by buying and planting 10,000 purple crocus bulbs. 

These spring flowering bulbs have added to the 5,000 bulbs purchased by Heywood Rotary to celebrate the 

worldwide campaign to eradicate polio. 

“As a team we have been working to help improve the environment across Heywood for the enjoyment of 

those who live and work here. This year has seen a lot of new planting around town with new planters 

being erected. 

"We would like to thank our town centre gardener Simon and Ian Trickett along with our environmental 

team for all their help across the town centre” 

“We attended the Neighbourhood Awards on Wednesday to collect six awards, four of these where top 

awards level five outstanding. Heywood in Bloom are proud and excited to have returned with four Gold 

Medal awards and two Silver Gilt on Friday:  

 Heywood Distribution Park - Gold 

 Queens Park - Gold 

 TOPS The Old Police Station - Gold 

 Crown Oil - Silver Gilt  

 Mike Goldrick Windows & Blinds - Silver Gilt  

“We would like to congratulate Rochdale in Bloom and Pennines in Bloom on their success this year with 

Rochdale also winning gold. 

“We are already working on our rout for 2017 and looking for new sponsors we would also like to expand 

our group of volunteers.” 

 Page 46

http://www.rochdaleonline.co.uk/news-features/viewer?NewsID=105941


Title: Disposal of Land to Rochdale Society 
of Model and Experimental Engineers

Public/Private: Private

Report to: Rochdale Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing and Environment

Report Author: Keith Orbell

Date: 11th January 2017

Director:    Director of Economy

Tel: Tel: 01706 923278  

Author Email:    keith.orbell@rochdale.gov.uk Key Decision: Yes/No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes/No
Section 151 Officer: Yes/No 

It is considered that the Committee is likely to exclude the public and press during 
consideration of the item to which this report relates because the following exempt 
information would be disclosed: Information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to recommend members of this Committee give consent 
to the disposal of the land currently occupied by the Rochdale Society of Model and 
Experimental Engineers (RSMEE) as the miniature railway at Springfield Park, Rochdale to 
RSMEE by way of a 99 Year Lease.

1.2 A plan of the land in question is attached at Appendix I

2. Recommendation
2.1  It is recommended that the current occupation of this land by RSMEE is regularised by 
a formal lease for a term of 99 years at a nominal rental

3. Reason for recommendation
3.1 RSMEE has been in occupation of this land for many decades, but has never had a 
formal lease. RSMEE currently occupies on the basis of an annual, renewable licence solely 
for the front part of the track including the engineering shed, station and storage areas at the 
area close to the Marland Fold / Bolton Road entrance to the park.

3.2 By granting a formal lease RSMEE would be able to attract funding to assist with 
specific projects such as fencing, improvements to the track and security for their buildings.

3.3 In addition, this would benefit the Council because RSMEE would be responsible for 
all maintenance within the land in question, including landscaping such as maintaining trees 
and cutting grass, repair of boundary structures such as wall, fences and gates and so on.

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



4. Background
4.1 The Land in question comprises part of Springfield Park, covering an area from close 
to the entrance to the park on the corner of Marland Fold and Bolton Road, extending 
between the golf course to the west and the park roadway to the east up to Springfield 
Nursing Home.

4.2 RSMEE began building the track and ancillary buildings on this site in 1959. In 1971 it 
was granted a year on year lease for the front part of the site (backing on to Bolton Road).
4.3 RSMEE has operated the miniature railway as one of the main attractions within 
Springfield Park, laying on special annual events such as the Santa Express and others 
throughout the year on a completely voluntary basis. Rides are charged at a very nominal fee 
(currently 50 pence per person).

4.4 RSMEE needs to improve its facilities, fencing and carry out works to the trees and 
landscaping. In order to comply with funding requirements it needs security of tenure for a 
minimum of 25 years. On the basis that it provides one of the significant attractions available 
at Springfield Park, the grant of a much more significant term is justified.

4.5 In the past the track has been damaged accidentally by deadfall from trees on the site. 
By making RSMEE responsible for landscaping, including looking after the trees on site, this 
type of damage is less likely to happen.

4.6 Springfield Park is classed as a “Jubilee Park” and as such consent for a disposal such 
as this is required from Fields in Trust. Fields in Trust has been approached and is 
considering this matter.

5. Alternatives considered
5.1 Allowing the current situation to continue is not viable: the existing lease does not 
cover the whole of the site, nor does it provide security of tenure to RSMEE.

5.2 Granting a lease of 25-30 years would have achieved RSMEE’s requirements for 
funding, but by granting a 99 year lease the Council will be securing the future of a valuable 
attraction to one of the Borough’s important parks.

6. Financial Implications
6.1 It is expected that there would be some savings from the fact that Environmental 
Management will no longer have to maintain the landscaping and trees on this land.

7. Legal Implications
7.1 The lease must be drafted in conjunction with any approvals and consents obtained from 
Fields in Trust  and incorporate any specific requirements which they make.

7.2 Given that the rental is one peppercorn, this matter will need to be considered separately 
by Cabinet as a below value disposal

8. Personnel Implications
8.1 There are no direct personnel implications in the disposal of this piece of land.

9. Corporate Priorities
9.1 Implementation of the recommendations within this report will contribute to the 
achievement of “Aiming High”, Principle 7: the Council “will reduce significantly the number of 
our assets and use them to deliver quality, efficient services”.

9.2 The “Vision and Blueprint for Rochdale Council for 2014/15” affirms the Council’s 
objective of reducing estates-related expenditure between 2012/13 and 2014/15. Anticipated 

Page 48



expenditure reductions will not be achieved without significant rationalisation of the property 
portfolio, supported by the introduction of new and more efficient means of managing the 
Council’s land and buildings.

10.  Risk Assessment Implications 
10.1 There are no major risks associated with this site. However, if  the current tenant has 
to end its occupation because of the inability to obtain funding, the risk liabilities such as  
damage by vandalism and regular or ad hoc maintenance obligations will escalate.

11. Equalities Impacts
11.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment:

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Background papers are NOT 
 appendices to the report, 
 documents otherwise available publicly (i.e. not previous reports, minutes, government 

publications etc 
 confidential/exempt information.  

The background papers referred to MUST be available on the Council’s website and should 
be accessible from a link included in the report

Page 49



Document is Restricted

Page 50

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	4 Minutes
	5 Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee
	6 Review of Sites of Biological Importance (SBIs) - Brownhouse Wham and Hamer Pastures Reservoirs
	Review of Sites of Biological Importance (SBIs) - Brownhouse Wham and Hamer Pastures Reservoirs enc. 1

	7 Townships in Bloom
	Append. 1 for Townships in Bloom
	Append. 2 for Townships in Bloom
	Append. 3 for Townships in Bloom

	9 Disposal of Land to Rochdale Society of Model and Experimental Engineers
	RSMEE Site Plan


